PLUMAS COUNTY JUVENILE JUSTICE COORDINATING COUNCIL (JJCC)/SB 823

SUBCOMMITTEE
MINUTES

Held Wednesday, April 16, 2025, 3:32 p.m. - 4:45 p.m.
Probation Dept. Conference Room

Virtual access URL:

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/7569297252?pwd=ZDJ3MEc1ROFxanVhU2J5bHNvZWZL Zz09&0

mn=84828279634

Meeting ID: 756 929 7252
Passcode: 9RSBmV

JUVENILE JUSTICE COORDINATING COUNCIL

Keevin Allred, Chair
Probation

David Hollister
District Attorney

Laura Atkins
Department of Social Services

Sharon Sousa/Kegan Hood
Behavioral Health Department

Andrea White/Melissa Leal
Office of Education

Mimi Hall
Board of Supervisors

Bill Powers, Vice-chair
At-large Community Member

Craig Osborne
Public Defender

Todd Johns/Jeremy Beatley
Sheriff’s Office

Nicole Reinert/Danielle Blust
Community-based Drug & Alcohol Program
Public Health Department

Paula Johnston/Bob Battistoni
Community-Based Organization - PRS

Darin Wood
Community-Based Organization

PLUMAS COUNTY SB 823 SUBCOMMITTEE

Keevin Allred, Chair
Probation

Judge Prouty
Court Representative

David Hollister
District Attorney

Laura Atkins
Department of Social Services

Sharon Sousa/Keegan Hood
Behavioral Health Department

Bill Powers, Vice-chair
Community Member

Andrea White/Melissa Leal
Office of Education

Craig Osborne
Public Defender

Darin Wood
Community Member

Paula Johnston/Bob Battistoni
Community Member

Page 1 of 4


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/7569297252?pwd=ZDJ3MEc1R0FxanVhU2J5bHNvZWZLZz09&omn=84828279634
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/7569297252?pwd=ZDJ3MEc1R0FxanVhU2J5bHNvZWZLZz09&omn=84828279634

L. CALL TO ORDER

a. Call to order: 3:32PM
b. Roll call/Introductions

PRESENT (IN PERSON): Keevin Allred, Laura Atkins, Keagan Hood, Danielle Blust, Miguel Herrera

PRESENT (VIA ZOOM): Paula Johnston, Darin Wood, Bill Powers, Mimi Hall, Craig Osborne (3:54PM)

ABSENT: David Hollister, Andea White/Melissa Leal, Todd Johns/Jeremy Beatley, Judge Prouty (SB823 Sub)
c. Additions or corrections to the Agenda

None.
2. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON AGENDA

a. Members of the public are welcome to address the JJCC on items not listed on the agenda, but
within the jurisdiction of the JJCC. The JJCC is prohibited by law from taking action on
matters not on the agenda. Individuals wishing to address the JJCC under Public Expression
are welcome to do so via email at keevinallred@countyofplumas.com. All correspondence
received by 8:00 A.M. the day of the meeting will be attached to the item.

None. No correspondence received.

3. DISCUSSION/ACTION AGENDA
a. Approval of Minutes from April 17, 2024, regular meeting (No quorum on June 26 and
November 6, 2024).

Recommended Action: Approve minutes of the April 17, 2024, regular meeting.
Attachment(s): April 17, 2024, draft minutes

JJCC had meetings on June 26, 2024 and November 6, 2024, however, due to no quorum, no minutes are
available.

MOTION: Approve minutes from April 17, 2024.

MOVED BY: Bill Powers

SECOND BY: Keagan Hood

AYES (IN PERSON): Keevin Allred, Keagan Hood, Danielle Blust

AYES (VIA ZOOM): Paula Johnston, Darin Wood, Bill Powers

NOES: None.

ABSTAIN: Mimi Hall, Laura Atkins

ABSENT: David Hollister, Todd Johns, Andrea White, Craig Osborne (Arrives later)
MOTION PASSES.

b. Discussion and possible action related to Juvenile Justice Coordinating Council and SB 823
vacant positions.

i. Welcome:
1. New member - Jeremy Beatley as the Sheriff’s Office representative
2. New member - Mimi Hall as the Board of Supervisors representative
3. New member - Laura Atkins as the Social Services representative
4. New member - Andrea White as County Office of Education/School District

representative
ii. Nomination(s):

Page 2 of 4


mailto:keevinallred@countyofplumas.com

1. Cathy Rahmeyer — Juvenile Justice Coordinating Council member- A
representative of a non-profit Community-Based Organization providing
services to youth

2. Cathy Rahmeyer — SB 823 Subcommittee member — A community member
who has experience providing community-based youth services, etc

Recommended Action: Approve appointment of Cathy Rahmeyer as JJCC Member and SB
823 Subcommittee Member

A Motion is presented.

MOTION: Approve appointment of Cathy Rahmeyer as JJCC Member and SB823 Subcommittee Member
MOVED BY: Mimi Hall

SECOND BY: Bill Powers

AYES (IN PERSON): Keevin Allred, Keagan Hood, Danielle Blust, Laura Atkins

AYES (VIA ZOOM): Paula Johnston, Darin Wood, Bill Powers, Mimi Hall

NOES: None.

ABSTAIN: None.

ABSENT: David Hollister, Todd Johns, Andrea White, Craig Osborne (Arrives later)

MOTION PASSES.

c. Summary of JJCPA Annual Expenditure Report and general fiscal status, discussion only:
Discussion is held regarding JICPA’s general fiscal status. Some brainstorming for ideas to spend funds is had.

d. Review, discussion, and possible action related to the Plumas County Juvenile Justice
consolidated Plan and SB 823 Annual Plan modifications, approval, and submission

Recommended Action: Approve revised and updated Juvenile Justice Consolidated Plan and
SB 823 Annual Plan for submission to OYCR (no longer BSCC).

Attachment(s):
Draft of updated FY24/25 Juvenile Justice Consolidated Plan
Draft of updated FY24/25 SB 823 Plan

Craig Osborne joins the meeting via Zoom at 3:54PM.

Discussions are held regarding the updated Juvenile Justice Plan. A motion is presented.

MOTION: Approve the revised and updated Juvenile Justice Consolidated Plan for submission to the OYCR.
MOVED BY: Danielle Blust

SECOND BY: Keagan Hood

ROLL CALL VOTE.
KEEVIN ALLRED (IN-PERSON):  Yes
DAVID HOLLISTER: Absent

LAURA ATKINS (IN-PERSON): Yes
KEAGAN HOOD (IN-PERSON): Yes

ANDREA WHITE: Absent
MIMI HALL (VIA ZOOM): Yes
BILL POWERS (VIA ZOOM): Yes
CRAIG OSBORNE (VIA ZOOM):  Yes
TODD JOHNS: Absent

DANIELLE BLUST (IN-PERSON): Yes
PAULA JOHNSTON (VIA ZOOM): Yes

Page 3 of 4



DARIN WOOD (VIA ZOOM): Yes
MOTION PASSES.

A motion is presented.
MOTION Approve the revised and updated SB823 Annual plan for submission to the OYCR.

MOVED BY: Keagan Hood
SECOND BY: Laura Atkins

ROLL CALL VOTE:

KEEVIN ALLRED (IN-PERSON):  Yes
JUDGE PROUTY: Absent
DAVID HOLLISTER: Absent

LAURA ATKINS (IN-PERSON): Yes
KEAGAN HOOD (IN-PERSON): Yes

BILL POWERS (VIA ZOOM): Yes
ANDREA WHITE: Absent
CRAIG OSBORNE (VIA ZOOM):  Yes
DARIN WOOD (VIA ZOOM): Yes
PAULA JOHNSTON (VIA ZOOM): Yes
MOTION PASSES.

The plans will be submitted to the OYCR by May 1%, 2025.

4, AGENCY REPORTS/ROUNDTABLE DISCUSSION OPEN TOPIC:
None.
5. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS: To be determined

Discussion is held regarding how to incentivize attendance and participation. Meetings will be held quarterly,
with more meetings if requested. A section for announcements by committee members will be added to future
agendas.

MEETING ADJOURNED AT 4:45PM, NEXT MEETING TIME TO BE ANNOUNCED AT A FUTURE DATE

Page 4 of 4



PLUMAS COUNTY JUVENILE JUSTICE COORDINATING COUNCIL (JJCC)/SB 823
SUBCOMMITTEE
MINUTES

Held Wednesday, July 23, 2025, 3:32 p.m. - 4:14 p.m.

Probation Dept. Conference Room
Virtual access URL:

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/75692972527pwd=ZDJ3MEc1R0OFxanVhU2J5bHNvZWZL Zz09&0

mn=84838912069

Meeting ID: 756 929 7252
Passcode: 9RSBmV

JUVENILE JUSTICE COORDINATING COUNCIL

Keevin Allred, Chair
Probation

David Hollister
District Attorney

Laura Atkins
Department of Social Services

Sharon Sousa/Kegan Hood
Behavioral Health Department

Andrea White/Melissa Leal
Office of Education

Mimi Hall
Board of Supervisors

Cathy Rahmeyer
Non-profit/CBO

Bill Powers, Vice-chair
At-large Community Member

Craig Osborne
Public Defender

Todd Johns/Jeremy Beatley
Sheriff’s Office

Nicole Reinert/Danielle Blust
Community-based Drug & Alcohol Program
Public Health Department

Paula Johnston/Bob Battistoni
Community-Based Organization - PRS

Darin Wood
Community-Based Organization

PLUMAS COUNTY SB 823 SUBCOMMITTEE

Keevin Allred, Chair
Probation

Judge Prouty
Court Representative

David Hollister
District Attorney

Laura Atkins
Department of Social Services

Sharon Sousa/Keegan Hood
Behavioral Health Department

Cathy Rahmeyer
Community member

Bill Powers, Vice-chair
Community Member

Andrea White/Melissa Leal
Office of Education

Craig Osborne
Public Defender

Darin Wood
Community Member

Paula Johnston/Bob Battistoni
Community Member

Page 1 of 3


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/7569297252?pwd=ZDJ3MEc1R0FxanVhU2J5bHNvZWZLZz09&omn=84838912069
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/7569297252?pwd=ZDJ3MEc1R0FxanVhU2J5bHNvZWZLZz09&omn=84838912069

1. CALL TO ORDER

a. Call to order
b. Roll call/Introductions

PRESENT: Keevin Allred, Keagan Hood, Danielle Blust, Andrea White, Darin Wood, Sharon McKay
(Literacy), Ashley Simpson (PCIRC), Wendy James (PCOE)

ABSENT: Bill Powers, David Hollister, Craig Osborne, Social Services Rep, Sherift’s Office Rep, Paula
Johnston/Bob Battistoni, Mimi Hall, Cathy Rahmeyer, Judge Prouty (SB823 Subcommittee)

NO QOUOROM

c. Additions or corrections to the Agenda
NONE.

2. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON AGENDA

a. Members of the public are welcome to address the JJCC on items not listed on the agenda, but
within the jurisdiction of the JJCC. The JJCC is prohibited by law from taking action on
matters not on the agenda. Individuals wishing to address the JJCC under Public Expression
are welcome to do so via email at keevinallred@countyofplumas.com. All correspondence
received by 8:00 A.M. the day of the meeting will be attached to the item.

NONE. No correspondence received.
3. INFORMATIONAL ANNOUNCEMENTS/REPORTS BY MEMBERS
Discussion was held.
4. DISCUSSION/ACTION AGENDA
a. Approval of Minutes from April 16, 2025, regular meeting.
Recommended Action: Approve minutes of the April 16, 2025, regular meeting.
Attachment(s): April 16, 2025, draft minutes
No action taken on meeting minutes due to lack of quorum.

b. Juvenile Justice Consolidated Plan and programming; review, discussion, and possible action:
i. Parent Project —

1. Modifications made to the contract with PRS, which consists of the following
language: “Contractor will be paid at a rate of $40.00 per hour pluas
reimbursement for materials to develop and implement a marketing plan.
Content and cost to be mutually agreed upon by the Executive Director and the
Chief Probation Officer or his/her designee.”

2. Schedule for parenting classes: Recommending January, April, and September
start dates.

Attachments: Plumas Rural Services updated contract
ii. Girls Circle or Voices Program in schools:
1. See sample journals: https://shop.changecompanies.net/products/v1
iii. Further discussion regarding programming.

Page 2 of 3


mailto:keevinallred@countyofplumas.com
https://shop.changecompanies.net/products/v

Discussion was held regarding agenda item b. No action taken due to lack of quorum.

5. AGENCY REPORTS/ROUNDTABLE DISCUSSION OPEN TOPIC:
None.

6. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS: To be determined
None.

MEETING ADJOURNED AT 4:14P.M. TO OCTOBER 22, 2025 @ 3:30 P.M.

Page 3 of 3



¢ Office of Youth and
OYCR Community Restoration

Juvenile Justice Crime Prevention Act & Youthful Offender
Block Grant (JJCPA-YOBG)

2025 Expenditure and Data Report

Date: September 30, 2025
County Name: Plumas
Primary Contact Name: Keevin Allred
Telephone Number:  530-283-6200
Title: Chief Probation Officer
Email Address: keevinallred@countyofplumas.com

Secondary Contact Name: Miguel Herrera
Telephone Number:  530-283-6200
Title: Department Fiscal Officer |l
Email Address: miguelherrera@countyofplumas.com

INSTRUCTIONS:

Report Submission Process

On or before October 1, 2025, each county is required to submit to the Office of Youth
and Community Restoration (OYCR) a report on its Juvenile Justice Crime Prevention
Act (JJCPA) and Youthful Offender Block Grant (YOBG) programs during the
preceding year. For JJCPA this requirement can be found at Government Code (GC)
Section 30061(b)(4)(C) and for YOBG it can be found at Welfare & Institutions Code
Section (WIC) 1961(c). These code sections both call for a consolidated report format
that includes a description of the programs and other activities supported by JJCPA
and/or YOBG funds, an accounting of all JUCPA and YOBG expenditures during the
prior fiscal year, and countywide juvenile justice trend data.

This template should be used to ensure your submission meets the accessibility
standards published by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. Plans must
meet these standards for posting to the OYCR website. The standards are outlined
here, Accessibility Conformance Checklists | HHS.gov.

Your submission will be posted to the OYCR website once it is confirmed to meets the
accessibility standards. We encourage you to review your report for accuracy before
sending it to the OYCR. Please review your submission for spelling and do NOT change
the report form to a PDF document prior to submission.


mailto:keevinallred@countyofplumas.com
https://legiscan.com/CA/text/AB169/id/3013949/California-2023-AB169-Chaptered.html
https://legiscan.com/CA/text/AB169/id/3013949/California-2023-AB169-Chaptered.html
https://legiscan.com/CA/text/AB169/id/3013949/California-2023-AB169-Chaptered.html
https://legiscan.com/CA/text/AB169/id/3013949/California-2023-AB169-Chaptered.html
https://www.hhs.gov/web/section-508/accessibility-checklists/index.html

Prior to submitting this report save the file using the following naming convention:
"(County Name) 2025 JJCPA-YOBG Report." For example, Sacramento County would
name its file "Sacramento 2025 JJCPA-YOBG Report".

Once the report is complete, attach the file to an

email and send it to: OYCRgrants@chhs.ca.gov.

Expenditure and Data Report Content

The report consists of several sections. Complete the report by providing the
information requested in each worksheet.

1. Report |. Countywide Juvenile Justice Data
a. Provide data directly from your Juvenile Court & Probation Statistical
System (JCPSS) Report 1that you received from the California
Department of Justice (DOJ) for 2024.
2. Similarly, for Report Ill. Countywide Juvenile Justice Data you will pull
information directly from your 2024 JCPSS Report 3.
3. For Arrest Data: Countywide Juvenile Justice Data you will obtain data from
the DOJ's Open Justice public website.
4. Analysis of Countywide Trend Data
a. Describe how the programs and activities funded by JJCPA-YOBG have,
or may have, contributed to the trends seen in the data included in
REPORT 1, REPORT 3, and ARREST DATA.
5. Accounting of JJCPA-YOBG Expenditures
a. You are required to provide a detailed accounting of actual expenditures
for each program, placement, service, strategy, or system enhancement
that was funded by JJCPA and/or YOBG during the preceding fiscal year.
This worksheet is also where you are asked to provide a description of
each item funded.



Contents

INSTRUCTIONS: ..ottt 1
RePOrt SUDMISSION PrOCESS ..o 1
Expenditure and Data Report CONLENt ..o e 2

CONTENTS . 3
Report |. Countywide Juvenile JUSTICE Data.........cooveviveieieeeeeee e 4
Report lll. Countywide Juvenile JUSTICE Data ... 5
Arrest Data: Countywide Juvenile JUStiCe Data..........cccoooiiicionieieeeece e 7/
Analysis of Countywide Trend Data........o.coooiceeeee e 8
Accounting of JUJCPA-YOBG EXPENAITUIES ........ccoovviieiieee e 9



Report . Countywide Juvenile Justice Data

Please use your Department of Justice (DOJ) “Report 1"—titled Referrals of Juveniles
to Probation Departments for Delinquent Acts, January 1-December 31, 2024: Age by
Referral Type, Gender, Race/Ethnic Group, Referral Source, Detention, Prosecutor
Action, and Probation Department Disposition—to complete the blank fields below.
Enter all relevant data exactly as reported under each category.

Probation Department Disposition

Informal Probation

Diversions

Petitions Filed

Total

(WO |

—_

Gender (Optional)

Male

Female

Total

Race/Ethnicity Group (Optional)

Hispanic

White

Black

Asian

Pacific Islander

Indian

Unknown

Total

Please use this space to explain any exceptions and/or anomalies in the

data reported above:

Plumas experienced a similar number of case dispositions as the
previous year. Informal Probation numbers stayed the same, diversions

and petitions filed are slightly up.




Report lll. Countywide Juvenile Justice Data

Please use your Department of Justice (DOJ) “Report 3"—titled Juvenile Court
Dispositions Resulting From Petitions for Delinquent Acts, January 1-December 31,
2024: Age by Petition Type, Gender, Race/Ethnic Group, Defense Representation,
Court Disposition and Wardship Placement —to complete the blank fields below. Enter
all relevant data exactly as reported under each category.

Petition Type

New 9
Subsequent 0
Total 9
Court Disposition
Informal Probation 2
Non-Ward Probation 3
Wardship Probation 4
Diversion 0
Deferred Entry of Judgement 0
Total 9
Wardship Placements
Own/Relative's Home 1
Non-Secure County Facility 0
Secure County Facility 1
Other Public Facility 0
Other Private Facility 2
Other 0
Total 4
Subsequent Actions

| Technical Violations e
Gender (Optional)
Male
Female
Total
Race/Ethnicity Group (Optional)
Hispanic
White
Black
Asian
Pacific Islander




Indian
Unknown
Total

Please use this space to explain any exceptions and/or anomalies in the
data reported above:

Petitions are slightly up. Proportionally, wardship placement is very
similar to the prior year. Informal and non-ward probation are up from the
prior year, but no deferred Entry of Judgement dispositions occurred
within the reporting period. No technical violations were reported.




Arrest Data: Countywide Juvenile Justice Data
In the blank boxes below, enter your juvenile arrest data from last year (2024).

Arrest data by county can be found at https://openjustice.doj.ca.gov/data or use your
County's recorded information:

Arrests

Felony Arrests

Misdemeanor Arrests

Status Arrests

SOU‘I\I

Total

Gender (Optional)

Male

Female

Total

Race/Ethnicity Group (Optional)

Black

White

Hispanic

Other

Total

Please use this space to explain any exceptions and/or anomalies in the
data reported above:

In 2024, felony violations drove the arrest count up significantly.
Misdemeanor arrests on the other hand are down.


https://openjustice.doj.ca.gov/data

Analysis of Countywide Trend Data

Provide a summary description or analysis, based on available information, of how the
programs, placements, services, strategies or system enhancements funded by JJCPA-
YOBG have, or may have, contributed to, or influenced, the juvenile justice data trends
identified in this report. Government Code Section 30061(b)(4)(C)(iv) & WIC Section
1961(c)(3):

Overall, the number of juvenile offenses committed during 2024 remains low.

Efforts have been made to handle low level cases with diversion programs;
however these methods and programs are not being accurately captured in the
Department's database.

Diversion programming includes referrals to the 3rd Millenium & Forward
Thinking educations & Journalling programs, as well as Probation Officer support and
monitoring.



Accounting of JJCPA-YOBG Expenditures

Use the template(s) below to report the programs, placements, services, strategies,
and/or system enhancements you funded in the preceding fiscal year. Use a separate
template for each program, placement, service, strategy, or system enhancement that
was supported with JJCPA and/or YOBG funds. If you need more templates than
provided, please use the Instructions for Additional Usage of Funds section at the end
for copy and pasting more tables.

1. Start by indicating the name of the first program, placement, service, strategy,
or system enhancement that was funded with JJCPA and/or YOBG funds last
year.

2. Next indicate the expenditure category using the list below:

List of Expenditure Categories and Associated Numerical Codes
Code Expenditure Category Code Expenditure Category
Placements 1 Juvenile Hall 5  Private Residential Care
2 Ranch 6 Home on Probation
3 Camp 7 Other Placement
4 Other Secure/Semi-Secure Rehab Facility
Code Expenditure Category Code Expenditure Category
Direct 8 Alcohol and Drug Treatment 26 Life/Independent Living Skills
Services 9  After School Services Training/Education
10 Aggression Replacement Therapy 27 Individual Mental Health Counseling
11 Anger Management Counseling/Treatment 28 Mental Health Screening
12 Development of Case Plan 29 Mentoring
13 Community Service 30 Monetary Incentives
14 Day or Evening Treatment Program 31 Parenting Education
15 Detention Assessment(s) 32  Pro-Social Skills Training
16 Electronic Monitoring 33 Recreational Activities
17 Family Counseling 34 Re-Entry or Aftercare Services
18  Functional Family Therapy 35 Restitution
19 Gang Intervention 36 Restorative Justice
20 Gender Specific Programming for Girls 37 Risk and/or Needs Assessment
21 Gender Specific Programming for Boys 38 Special Education Services
22  Group Counseling 39 Substance Abuse Screening
23 Intensive Probation Supervision 40 Transitional Living Services/Placement
24 Job Placement 41  Tutoring
25 Job Readiness Training 42 Vocational Training
43 Other Direct Service
Code Expenditure Category Code Expenditure Category
Capacity 44 Staff Training/Professional Development 48 Contract Services
Building/ 45  Staff Salaries/Benefits 49 Other Procurements
Maintenance 46 Capital Improvements 50 Other
Activities 47  Equipment

3. For each program, placement, service, strategy, or system enhancement, record

actual expenditure details for the preceding fiscal year. Expenditures will be
categorized as coming from one or more of three funding sources:
1. JJCPA funds
2. YOBG funds
3. Other funding sources (local, federal, other state, private, etc.)
Be sure to report all JJCPA and YOBG expenditures for the preceding fiscal



year irrespective of the fiscal year during which the funds were allocated.

Definitions of the budget line items are:

e Salaries and Benefits includes all expenditures related to paying the salaries
and benefits of county probation (or other county department) employees
who were directly involved in grant-related activities.

e Services and Supplies includes expenditures for services and supplies
necessary for the operation of the project (e.g., lease payments for vehicles
and/or office space, office supplies) and/or services provided to
participants and/or family members as part of the project's design (e.g.,
basic necessities such as food, clothing, transportation, and shelter/housing;
and related costs).

e Professional Services includes all services provided by individuals and
agencies with whom the County contracts. The county is responsible for
reimbursing every contracted individual/agency.

e Community-Based Organizations (CBO) includes all expenditures for
services received from CBO's. NOTE: If you use JJCPA and/or YOBG funds
to contract with a CBO, report that expenditure on this line item rather than
on the Professional Services line item.

e Fixed Assets/Equipment includes items such as vehicles and equipment
needed to implement and/or operate the program, placement, service, etc.
(e.g., computer and other office equipment including furniture).

e Administrative Overhead includes all costs associated with administration
of the program, placement, service, strategy, and/or system enhancement
being supported by JJCPA and/or YOBG funds.

4. Use the space below the budget detail to provide a narrative description for
each program, placement, service, strategy, and/or system enhancement that
was funded last year.

Repeat this process as many times as needed to fully account for all programs,
placements, services, strategies, and systems enhancements that were funded with
JJCPA and/or YOBG during the last fiscal year. Keep in mind that this full report will be
posted on the OYCR website in accordance with state law.

10



Program, Placement, Service, Strategy, or System Enhancement

Name of program, placement,
service, strategy or system
enhancement (Required):

Psychological/Psychosexual Evaluations

Expenditure Category
(Required):

Mental Health Screening

JJCPA Funds

YOBG Funds

All Other Funds
(Optional)

Salaries & Benefits:

Services & Supplies:

Professional Services:

Community Based
Organizations:

Fixed Assets/Equipment:

Administrative Overhead:

Other Expenditures

$
$
$
$
$
$

(List Below):
$ $ $
$ $ $
$ $ $
TOTAL: 0] 0] $0O

Provide a description of the program, placement, service, strategy or system
enhancement that was funded with JJCPA and/or YOBG funds in the preceding
fiscal year. For example, you might want to include information on the types of
youth served, prevention services you provided, your accomplishments, any
barriers encountered, and what specifically JJCPA and/or YOBG funds paid for.

Sapience and Ing Counseling both continue under contract to provide
psychological and psychosexual evaluations respectively. Neither service was
required during the prior fiscal year.

11



Program, Placement, Service, Strategy, or System Enhancement

Name of program, placement,

service, strategy or system Juvenile Hall
enhancement (Required):
Expenditure Category Juvenile Hall
(Required):

JJCPA Funds | YOBG Funds All Other Funds

(Optional)

Salaries & Benefits: $ $ $
Services & Supplies: $ $1,125.69 $
Professional Services: $ $54,114.70 $
Community Based $ $ $
Organizations:
Fixed Assets/Equipment: $ $ $
Administrative Overhead: $ $ $

Other Expenditures
(List Below):

$ $ $

$ $ $

$ $ $
TOTAL: $O $55,240.39 $0

Provide a description of the program, placement, service, strategy or system
enhancement that was funded with JJCPA and/or YOBG funds in the preceding
fiscal year. For example, you might want to include information on the types of
youth served, prevention services you provided, your accomplishments, any
barriers encountered, and what specifically JJCPA and/or YOBG funds paid for.

Plumas County has no operational Juvenile Hall within county limits. Contracts are
in place with Tehama, Shasta, Butte, and Placer county for use of their facilities.
Placement within the hall is reserved for Juveniles who are deemed at risk of
causing harm to others, the community at large, or youth who otherwise
continuously engage in delinquent behavior. Plumas saw an overall reduction in hall
usage during the fiscal year.

12



Program, Placement, Service, Strategy, or System Enhancement

Name of program, placement,
service, strategy or system
enhancement (Required):

Parent Project, Nurturing Parent and Teen
Relationships/Support

Expenditure Category Parenting Education
(Required):

JJCPA Funds | YOBG Funds All Other Funds

(Optional)

Salaries & Benefits: $ $ $
Services & Supplies: $656.30 $ $
Professional Services: $1,995.00 $ $
Community Based $ $ $
Organizations:
Fixed Assets/Equipment: $ $ $
Administrative Overhead: $ $ $

Other Expenditures

(List Below):
$ $ $
$ $ $
$ $ $
TOTAL: $2,651.30 $0 SO

Provide a description of the program, placement, service, strategy or system
enhancement that was funded with JJCPA and/or YOBG funds in the preceding
fiscal year. For example, you might want to include information on the types of
youth served, prevention services you provided, your accomplishments, any
barriers encountered, and what specifically JJCPA and/or YOBG funds paid for.

The Nurturing Parent and Teen Relationship/Support program, provided by Plumas
Rural Services, saw a reduction in spending for the 24-25 fiscal year, due to lower
class participation. The program includes Parent Project group classes and a 2.5
hour Truancy Prevention class for parents in partnership with local schools and the
Literacy Program. Referrals are received from the local SARB committee.

13



Program, Placement, Service, Strategy, or System Enhancement

Name of program, placement,
service, strategy or system
enhancement (Required):

Journaling

Expenditure Category
(Required):

After-School Services

JJCPA Funds

YOBG Funds

All Other Funds
(Optional)

Salaries & Benefits:

Services & Supplies:

520.34

Professional Services:

Community Based
Organizations:

621.00

Fixed Assets/Equipment:

Administrative Overhead:

$
$
$
$
$
$

Other Expenditures

|~ B |||

$
$
$
$
$
$

(List Below):
$ $ $
$ $ $
$ $ $
TOTAL: $520.34 $621.00 SO

Provide a description of the program, placement, service, strategy or system
enhancement that was funded with JJCPA and/or YOBG funds in the preceding
fiscal year. For example, you might want to include information on the types of
youth served, prevention services you provided, your accomplishments, any
barriers encountered, and what specifically JJCPA and/or YOBG funds paid for.

Journal courses, using curriculum from The Change Company, are provided to
juveniles as both a group course and on an individual basis. The group course is
facilitated by Plumas County Literacy, a county program.

14



Program, Placement, Service, Strategy, or System Enhancement

Name of program, placement,

service, strategy or system Electronic Monitoring
enhancement (Required):
Expenditure Category Electronic Monitoring
(Required):

JJCPA Funds | YOBG Funds All Other Funds

(Optional)

Salaries & Benefits: $ $ $
Services & Supplies: $ $ $
Professional Services: $ $1,065.47 $
Community Based $ $ $
Organizations:
Fixed Assets/Equipment: $ $ $
Administrative Overhead: $ $ $

Other Expenditures
(List Below):

$ $ $

$ $ $

$ $ $
TOTAL: $0 $1,065.47 $0

Provide a description of the program, placement, service, strategy or system
enhancement that was funded with JJCPA and/or YOBG funds in the preceding
fiscal year. For example, you might want to include information on the types of
youth served, prevention services you provided, your accomplishments, any
barriers encountered, and what specifically JJCPA and/or YOBG funds paid for.

Electronic Monitoring is implemented on lower-risk youth who have committed
criminal offenses, noncompliant youth, or youth who are deemed a risk to the
safety of the community or themselves. The program allows for the youth's
placement in his or her home when appropriate, or placement with a family
member or foster home within the community. In this way, placement disruption is
kept to a minimum and continuity of care can be maintained. Maintaining the youth
in his or her community helps to eliminate the need for significant disruption in the
juvenile's life while reducing the chances of re-victimizing community members
and avoiding costly out-of-home placement in a juvenile hall or group home
placement. Electronic monitoring provides an effective intervention for non-
compliance as well as eliminating or reducing risk factors. The recent addition of
GPS capability has expanded the program's usefulness. YOBG funds paid for the
cost of all fees associated with the rental of EM equipment, monitoring software,
and monitoring of performance in the program. Fees are not collected for the
program; therefore, YOBG funds are critical for implementation. This program
saves money by reducing the need to place youth in detention facilities or group
homes.

15



Program, Placement, Service, Strategy, or System Enhancement

Name of program, placement,
service, strategy or system
enhancement (Required):

Recreational Activities

Expenditure Category

Recreational Activities

(Required):
JJCPA Funds YOBG Funds All Other Funds
(Optional)

Salaries & Benefits: $ $ $

Services & Supplies: $ $ $

Professional Services: $999.00 $ $

Community Based $ $ $
Organizations:

Fixed Assets/Equipment: $ $ $
Administrative Overhead: $ $ $

Other Expenditures

(List Below):
$ $ $
$ $ $
$ $ $
TOTAL: $999.00 $0 SO

Provide a description of the program, placement, service, strategy or system
enhancement that was funded with JJCPA and/or YOBG funds in the preceding
fiscal year. For example, you might want to include information on the types of
youth served, prevention services you provided, your accomplishments, any
barriers encountered, and what specifically JJCPA and/or YOBG funds paid for.

Probation did not participate in the Children’s fair for FY24-25. This service will be
retained for future participation.
Probation used JJCPA funds to provide a presentation from Victory 4 Youth, an

inspirational school assembly program provided to at-risk youth.

16



Program, Placement, Service, Strategy, or System Enhancement

Name of program, placement,
service, strategy or system

enhancement (Required):

Staff Training/Professional Development

Expenditure Category
(Required):

Staff Training/Professional Development

JJCPA Funds

YOBG Funds

All Other Funds
(Optional)

Salaries & Benefits:

Services & Supplies:

Professional Services:

Community Based
Organizations:

Fixed Assets/Equipment:

Administrative Overhead:

Other Expenditures

|~ B |||

$
$
$
$
$
$

(List Below):

Registration $ $920 $
Hotel Cost $ $1,530.49 $
Airfare $ $297.96 $
TOTAL: 0] $2,748.45 $0O

Provide a description of the program, placement, service, strategy or system
enhancement that was funded with JJCPA and/or YOBG funds in the preceding
fiscal year. For example, you might want to include information on the types of
youth served, prevention services you provided, your accomplishments, any
barriers encountered, and what specifically JJCPA and/or YOBG funds paid for.

Plumas sent their lone Juvenile Deputy Probation Officer on two juvenile related
trainings in FY24.25, which incurred costs for hotel, airfare, etc.

17



Program, Placement, Service, Strategy, or System Enhancement

Name of program, placement,

service, strategy or system Salaries and Benefits
enhancement (Required):
Expenditure Category Staff Salaries/Benefits
(Required):
JJCPA Funds | YOBG Funds All Other Funds
(Optional)
Salaries & Benefits: $54,081.96 $81,428.37 $
Services & Supplies: $ $2,942.44 $
Professional Services: $ $540.74 $
Community Based $ $ $
Organizations:
Fixed Assets/Equipment: $ $204.55 $
Administrative Overhead: $ $ $
Other Expenditures
Lstscon I
$ $ $
$ $ $
$ $ $
TOTAL: $54,081.96 $85,116.10 $0

Provide a description of the program, placement, service, strategy or system
enhancement that was funded with JJCPA and/or YOBG funds in the preceding
fiscal year. For example, you might want to include information on the types of
youth served, prevention services you provided, your accomplishments, any
barriers encountered, and what specifically JJCPA and/or YOBG funds paid for.

Includes computer equipment, office expenses, etc.

From YOBG: 5% percent of both the Department Fiscal Officer and the Administrative Assistant's
wages and benefits were allocated for monitoring YOBG grant expenditures and filing of claims.
35% percent of a Management Analyst's wages and benefits were allocated for gathering statistical
data and reporting. A Legal Services Assistant position at 20% for program-related duties, including
court. 30% of the Juvenile Probation Officer's Wages for case management, placement visitation,
court appearances, in-field visits, reporting, etc.

JJCPA: 5% percent of the Department Fiscal Officer, Administrative Assistant, and Management
Analyst's wages and benefits were allocated for monitoring of JJCPA expenditures, assessment of
grant utilization, and payment of claims. 20% of a Probation Assistant's wages and benefits, and
30% of the Juvenile Deputy Probation Officer's wages and benefits were also paid. YOBG is
beginning to struggle on fund balances, so JJCPA funds will be further allocated towards
wages/benefits in FY25.26.

18



Program, Placement, Service, Strategy, or System Enhancement

Name of program, placement,

service, strategy or system Alcohol and Drug Treatment
enhancement (Required):
Expenditure Category Alcohol and Drug Treatment
(Required):
JJCPA Funds | YOBG Funds All Other Funds
(Optional)
Salaries & Benefits: $ $ $
Services & Supplies: $ $1,054.64 $
Professional Services: $ $1,976.82 $
Community Based $ $ $
Organizations:
Fixed Assets/Equipment: $ $ $
Administrative Overhead: $ $ $
Other Expenditures
Ukseons I
$ $ $
$ $ $
$ $ $
TOTAL: $0 $3,031.46 $0

Provide a description of the program, placement, service, strategy or system
enhancement that was funded with JJCPA and/or YOBG funds in the preceding
fiscal year. For example, you might want to include information on the types of
youth served, prevention services you provided, your accomplishments, any
barriers encountered, and what specifically JJCPA and/or YOBG funds paid for.

3rd Millennium Classrooms have been used primarily as an educational resource for youth in
prevention and diversion programs. At times, it may be used for youth on informal and formal
probation. The online platform has continued to prove useful long after the pandemic subsided.
Available classes include Alcohol Education, lllicit & Prescription Drug Use Education, and Marijuana
Education, with a recently added Truancy course that can be utilized by the SARB.

YOBG funds provide Forward Thinking curriculum for these journaling activities. Relevant topics
include Substance Using Behaviors, Responsible Behavior, Individual Change Plan, and Handling
Difficult Feelings. Forward Thinking Interactive Journaling can be utilized for youth at any stage of
the continuum of services including prevention, diversion, informal probation and formal probation.
Typically, the program is implemented in a one on one format with the Probation Officer and client;
however, development of a group format has been added.

Soberlink Alcohol Detection (24/7 monitoring) devices and urine/saliva drug/alcohol testing
continue to be utilized by the department on a regular basis.

YOBG funds provide service, equipment and supplies for drug and alcohol testing.

19



Program, Placement, Service, Strategy, or System Enhancement

Name of program, placement,
service, strategy or system
enhancement (Required):

Monetary Incentives

Expenditure Category

Monetary Incentives

(Required):
JJCPA Funds YOBG Funds All Other Funds
(Optional)

Salaries & Benefits: $ $ $

Services & Supplies: $ $20.00 $

Professional Services: $ $75.00 $

Community Based $ $ $
Organizations:

Fixed Assets/Equipment: $ $ $
Administrative Overhead: $ $ $

Other Expenditures

(List Below):
$ $ $
$ $ $
$ $ $
TOTAL: 0] $95.00 $0O

Provide a description of the program, placement, service, strategy or system
enhancement that was funded with JJCPA and/or YOBG funds in the preceding
fiscal year. For example, you might want to include information on the types of
youth served, prevention services you provided, your accomplishments, any
barriers encountered, and what specifically JJCPA and/or YOBG funds paid for.

Plumas provided support via an incentive to a Juvenile who was struggling,
including lunch and three months of gym memberships.

20



Program, Placement, Service, Strategy, or System Enhancement

Name of program, placement,

service, strategy or system Assessment/Case Management Software
enhancement (Required):
Expenditure Category Risk and/or Needs Assessment
(Required):

JJCPA Funds | YOBG Funds All Other Funds

(Optional)

Salaries & Benefits: $ $ $
Services & Supplies: $ $7,542.32 $
Professional Services: $ $ $
Community Based $ $ $
Organizations:
Fixed Assets/Equipment: $ $ $
Administrative Overhead: $ $ $

Other Expenditures
(List Below):

$ $ $

$ $ $

$ $ $
TOTAL: $0 $§7,542.32 $0

Provide a description of the program, placement, service, strategy or system
enhancement that was funded with JJCPA and/or YOBG funds in the preceding
fiscal year. For example, you might want to include information on the types of
youth served, prevention services you provided, your accomplishments, any
barriers encountered, and what specifically JJCPA and/or YOBG funds paid for.

All'youth referred to the Probation Department undergo an evidence-based
assessment tool evaluation (PACT) (RPACT for placement youth) to determine
their risk to reoffend. Depending on their rating (low, moderate, or high risk) to
recidivate, this tool is used to develop an appropriate case pan.

YOBG funds are used to pay for licenses to access the evidence-based
assessment tool as well as training to ensure continuity and fidelity. A contract is in
place with Noble Software Group to provide assessment software. This product
has proven effective and useful. In addition to providing risk/need assessments
and case planning tools, the Detention Risk Assessment Instrument has been
added. Furthermore, the Department utilizes the Tyler Enterprise (formerly
CaseloadPRO) Case Management System software.

All case management is documented in this system and it is utilized for reports
related to clients, supervision, recidivism and case management.

21



Program, Placement, Service, Strategy, or System Enhancement

Name of program, placement,

service, strategy or system Truancy Prevention Team — Early Intervention
enhancement (Required): Program

Expenditure Category Tutoring

(Required):

JJCPA Funds YOBG Funds All Other Funds
(Optional)

Salaries & Benefits:

Services & Supplies:

Professional Services:

Organizations:

Fixed Assets/Equipment:

$ $ $
$ $ $
$ $ $
Community Based $ $ $
$ $ $
$ $ $

Administrative Overhead:

Other Expenditures
(List Below):

$ $ $

$ $ $

$ $ $
TOTAL: $O $O $O

Provide a description of the program, placement, service, strategy or system
enhancement that was funded with JJCPA and/or YOBG funds in the preceding
fiscal year. For example, you might want to include information on the types of
youth served, prevention services you provided, your accomplishments, any
barriers encountered, and what specifically JJCPA and/or YOBG funds paid for.

In previous years, the Probation Department has worked closely with the District
Attorney's Office and Social Services Department to provide a truancy program in
Plumas County. The program was progressing well and appeared to be an
effective intervention to curbing truancy. However, the pandemic proved quite
disruptive to schools and this program. Recent discussions with school
administrators and the District Attorney suggest a desire to resume this program.
As of FY24-25 it remains an ongoing process. Other Truancy prevention resources
have been developed, as noted throughout this report, to support the schools and
the SARB.

22



Program, Placement, Service, Strategy, or System Enhancement

Name of program, placement,
service, strategy or system Placement Visitation
enhancement (Required):

Expenditure Category Other Placement
(Required):

JJCPA Funds YOBG Funds All Other Funds
(Optional)

Salaries & Benefits:

Services & Supplies:

Community Based
Organizations:

Fixed Assets/Equipment:

$
$
Professional Services: $
$
$
$

|~ B |||

$
$
$
$
$
$

Administrative Overhead:

Other Expenditures
(List Below):

JV Meals $ $550.75 $
Fuel $ $4,600.19 $
$ $ $

TOTAL: SO $5,148.32 SO

Provide a description of the program, placement, service, strategy or system
enhancement that was funded with JJCPA and/or YOBG funds in the preceding
fiscal year. For example, you might want to include information on the types of
youth served, prevention services you provided, your accomplishments, any
barriers encountered, and what specifically JJCPA and/or YOBG funds paid for.

The Juvenile Probation Officer visits juveniles at group homes, RFA homes,
emergency foster care placements and in their private residences on a regular
basis. Given the rural location of the county and considering many of the out of
home placement locations are a significant distance away, engaging in visitation
requires a significant amount of time and travel.

23



Program, Placement, Service, Strategy, or System Enhancement

Name of program, placement,
service, strategy or system
enhancement (Required):

Vehicle Maintenance

Expenditure Category Equipment
(Required):

JJCPA Funds | YOBG Funds All Other Funds

(Optional)

Salaries & Benefits: $ $ $
Services & Supplies: $ $ $
Professional Services: $ $1,429.72 $
Community Based $ $ $
Organizations:
Fixed Assets/Equipment: $ $ $
Administrative Overhead: $ $ $

Other Expenditures

(List Below):
$ $ $
$ $ $
$ $ $
TOTAL: 0] $1,429.72 $0O

Provide a description of the program, placement, service, strategy or system
enhancement that was funded with JJCPA and/or YOBG funds in the preceding
fiscal year. For example, you might want to include information on the types of
youth served, prevention services you provided, your accomplishments, any
barriers encountered, and what specifically JJCPA and/or YOBG funds paid for.

YOBG contributed the funds to maintaining the juvenile vehicle in FY24.25, which
continues to need routine maintenance.

24



	cf669ec3-6673-4a91-9aea-4c931b92585f.pdf
	INSTRUCTIONS:
	Report Submission Process
	Expenditure and Data Report Content

	Contents
	Report I. Countywide Juvenile Justice Data
	Please use this space to explain any exceptions and/or anomalies in the data reported above:
	Plumas experienced a similar number of case dispositions as the previous year. Informal Probation numbers stayed the same, diversions and petitions filed are slightly up.

	Probation Department Disposition
	Gender (Optional)
	Race/Ethnicity Group (Optional)
	Report III. Countywide Juvenile Justice Data
	Please use this space to explain any exceptions and/or anomalies in the data reported above:
	Petitions are slightly up. Proportionally, wardship placement is very similar to the prior year. Informal and non-ward probation are up from the prior year, but no deferred Entry of Judgement dispositions occurred within the reporting period. No techn...

	Petition Type
	Court Disposition
	Wardship Placements
	Subsequent Actions
	Gender (Optional)
	Race/Ethnicity Group (Optional)
	Arrest Data: Countywide Juvenile Justice Data
	Please use this space to explain any exceptions and/or anomalies in the data reported above:
	In 2024, felony violations drove the arrest count up significantly. Misdemeanor arrests on the other hand are down.

	Arrests
	Gender (Optional)
	Race/Ethnicity Group (Optional)
	Analysis of Countywide Trend Data
	Accounting of JJCPA-YOBG Expenditures
	 Program, Placement, Service, Strategy, or System Enhancement
	Program, Placement, Service, Strategy, or System Enhancement
	Program, Placement, Service, Strategy, or System Enhancement
	Program, Placement, Service, Strategy, or System Enhancement
	Program, Placement, Service, Strategy, or System Enhancement
	Program, Placement, Service, Strategy, or System Enhancement
	Program, Placement, Service, Strategy, or System Enhancement
	Program, Placement, Service, Strategy, or System Enhancement
	Program, Placement, Service, Strategy, or System Enhancement
	Program, Placement, Service, Strategy, or System Enhancement
	Program, Placement, Service, Strategy, or System Enhancement
	Program, Placement, Service, Strategy, or System Enhancement
	Program, Placement, Service, Strategy, or System Enhancement
	Program, Placement, Service, Strategy, or System Enhancement


